Yolo County Health Council

June 13, 2019 Minutes

MICHAEL WILKES, MD, CHAIR ELIZABETH MUNGUIA, VICE-CHAIR

YOLO COUNTY HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES AGENCY

GONZALEZ BUILDING, COMMUNITY ROOM 25 NORTH COTTONWOOD STREET, WOODLAND, CA 95695 The Yolo County Health Council and the Yolo County Commission on Aging and Adult Services met in a joint meeting on the 13th Day of June 2019, in the Community Room at the Gonzalez Building at 25 North Cottonwood Street, Woodland, CA at 9:00 a.m.

VOTING MEMBERS PRESENT: Michael Wilkes, District 2; Carri Ziegler, District 3; Valerie Olson, District 5; Elizabeth Abbott, At-Large Member;

Lori Duisenberg, First 5 Yolo; Kathleen Middings, MCAH Advisory Board; Jeneba Lahai, Yolo County Children's Alliance;

Evan Priestley, CommuniCare Health Centers; Mark Ho, Kaiser Permanente;

Dustin Lyda, Partnership Healthplan of California; Craig Blomberg, Sutter Health; Stacey McCall, Winters Health Care;

Tandy Burton, Woodland Health Care

VOTING MEMBERS ABSENT: Elizabeth Munguia, District 1; Linda Deos, District 4; John Tan, At-Large Member; Pat Moore Pickett, At-Large Member;

Dawn Myers, Commission on Aging & Adult Services; Scott Hatcher, EMCC; Nicki King, Local Mental Health Board;

Tatyana Bak, Elica Health Centers; Chester Austin, Northern Valley Indian Health

STAFF & GUESTS PRESENT: Celeste Armstrong, Dignity Health; Lizeth Betancourt, HHSA; Julie Burns, Yolo County Probation;

Jill Cook, County Administrator's Office; Dan Fruchtenicht, Yolo County Probation; Susan Gonzalez, Public;

Leigh Harrington, Medical Director of Behavioral Health, HHSA; Kerri Hess, Health Ed Council; Jessica Jones, Assistant Deputy to Supervisor Saylor; Mary Ann Limbos, Deputy Health Officer, HHSA;

Oscar Ruiz, Yolo County Probation; Cyndi Sechler, Secretary, HHSA; Brian Vaughn, Public Health Director, HHSA;

Tia Will, Public

9:00 A.M. CALL TO ORDER

1. WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS – Michael Wilkes, Health Council Chair

The June 13, 2019 Health Council meeting was called to order at 9:02 a.m., at which time around the table introductions occurred and quorum was confirmed.

- 2. CONSIDER APPROVAL OF AGENDA Michael Wilkes, Health Council Chair
- 3. APPROVE THE MAY 9, 2019 MINUTES Michael Wilkes, Health Council Chair

Mary Ann Limbos asked to amend the May 9th minutes to correct the website address for the Yolo County's Measle's webpage.

The Chair asked for a motion to accept the May 9, 2019 minutes with the correction of the webpage.

Motion: Jeneba Lahai Second: Craig Blomberg Discussion: None Vote: Unanimous

4. PUBLIC COMMENT

Michael Wilkes asked which Health Council members would like to participate in touring the Office of Refugee Resettlement facility. Michael Wilkes will email the tour details to the members who are interested.

- 5. STATE AND COUNTY UPDATE Jill Cook, County Administrator's Office
 - **State Budget:** The State budget may be approved today; the Governor has until Saturday to approve the budget. By the July meeting Jill hopes to have some updates to share with the Council regarding indigent health and funding to Public Health Departments in California.
 - **County Budget:** On Tuesday, the Board of Supervisors approved the county budget; and the adopted budget will come in September for final approval.
 - **Indigent Health:** We are a County Medical Services Program (CMSP), and Jill handed out a CMSP flyer that gives background information on the program and the expansion concepts. CMSP Background Information.
 - **County Strategic Plan:** The Board of Supervisors are in the plan development phase of their 2020 Strategic Plan. The next workshop will be on July 16th, and the topics will include the environment, agriculture, and the economy. We are currently working on scheduling an additional workshop on safe communities for August.

- **6. BOARD OF SUPERVISORS UPDATE –** Supervisor Don Saylor, District 2
 - County Budget: This is the first year the Yolo County budget has exceeded over \$500 million which is a
 milestone for us, with the majority of the funds dedicated to state and federal funded programs, or other
 restricted activities.

This coming year, the Board decided to fund a position in the Public Defender's office for the Immigration Removal Defense. This Defense Attorney will represent individuals who are facing deportation and who does not necessarily have a criminal record, or if they do have a record, it is a minor one.

The Board also recently approved support for a non-county program that is operated by Turning Point in two locations in Davis. The Board authorized \$150,000 per year for the next three years to support the needs of the facilities, with the money coming from the Mental Health Services Act.

7. COMMUNITY HEALTH BRANCH REPORT — Brian Vaughn, Public Health Director Branch Report

- **State Budget:** In the state budget there is a proposal for a one-time funding of \$40 million for a variety of infectious diseases, we estimate Yolo County will get \$250,000, which will go a long way working with our syphilis cases and other infectious diseases and some of the activities moving forward.
 - There is also additional funding for the California Home Visiting program. We are estimating around \$60,000-70,000 hopefully coming back to the county to help build systems around our home visiting services.
- **Emergency Medical Services (EMS):** At the June 25th Board of Supervisors meeting, EMS will present first time awards to all of our partners and all the great work they are doing around EMS.
- Maternal, Child and Adolescent Health (MCAH): The MCAH Board will be giving their Annual Report to the Board of Supervisors at the June 25th meeting. They have done great work this past year, looking at the top issues in MCAH but also the root causes.
- Mental Health Services Act (MHSA): The MHSA planning work has been shifted from our Adult and Aging
 Branch over to the Community Health Branch, so we are assisting and overseeing the planning process for the
 mental health services. It is required every three years to do a community planning process, and we are taking
 that over to help given our capacity with our Community Needs Assessment, our Community Health
 Improvement Plan, and Healthy Yolo. The next community planning cycle will begin later this summer.
- California Department of Public Health (CDPH): Released a draft guidance to all the partners in the state on what to do around smoke. Once that is finalized and released, we will share it with the group and our partners who work with vulnerable populations.
- **Health Education:** Friday Night Live has been working with the West Sacramento Police Department to develop a TRACE (Target Responsibility for Alcohol Connected Emergencies) program. TRACE investigates adults who supplies alcohol to minors, and holds them responsible if a minor is involved in an underage drinking emergency.
- 8. HEALTH OFFICER REPORT Ron Chapman, Health Officer
 - **Syphilis:** With the outbreak of syphilis in California and the country, Yolo County has its first congenital syphilis case for 2019. The child was born out of state, and came back into the foster care system in Yolo County, and is experiencing a lot of social issues. Once the new grant contract is signed with CMSP, hopefully it will be soon, money will start coming in and then we can get syphilis testing kits out into the communities.

- **Tuberculosis:** Yolo County has active tuberculosis cases, and we are keeping busy with the intensive Directly Observe Therapy. County staff go out to observe patients taking medication because it is a very complex set of medication, and these patients are treated anywhere from six or nine months or even a year.
- Measles: We continue to see increases across the country. The Centers for Disease Control reports about 1,000 cases now. In California there is about 50 cases, with no active cases in Yolo County. Staff is working hard to educate the public, providers and working with providers.
- West Nile virus: There are no human cases in California yet this season; but they are starting to report birds that are infected and they are tracking mosquitos in Riverside, Tulare and in another county in California that have mosquitos that are positive for West Nile.
- **Oral Health:** The lead for the program, Rebecca Tryon, will be giving a presentation at the Health Council next month. There is a lot of exciting great work that is happening in our Oral Health program.
- 9. NOMINATION COMMITTEE UPDATE Brian Vaughn, Public Health Director

The nomination committee consists of Stacey McCall, Beth Abbott, Carri Ziegler, and Brian Vaughn. The group discussed the roles for the <u>Chair and Vice-Chair positions</u>, so those who are interested in a position will understand what to expect and how much time and resources will go into it.

Brian will send out an email asking for nominations, and then we will bring the names of the nominees to the July meeting for a vote.

PRESENTATIONS

- **10. OFFICE OF REFUGEE RESETTLEMENT (ORR)** *Julie Burns, Yolo Secure Program Director, Office of Refugee Resettlement* PowerPoint: <u>ORR Yolo Secure Program</u>
 - Some of the items covered included:
 - Yolo County ORR Background
 - Average Daily Population
 - o De-escalation and Use of Force
 - Safety Factors and Administrative Changes
- **11. JUVENILE DETENTION FACILITY** Dan Fruchtenicht, Chief Probation Officer, Yolo County Probation Department PowerPoint: Juvenile Detention Facility
 - Some of the items covered included:
 - Statewide Trend
 - o FY 2019-20 Requested Budget
 - Demand for Services
 - Average Daily Population

ANNOUNCEMENTS

12. REPRESENTATIVE REPORT OUT & ANNOUNCEMENTS

 Evan Priestly – CommuniCare Health Centers is having a fundraiser to support the installation of the Hansen Family Health Center Garden and Outdoor Classroom. The event will take place on July 25th, for tickets and more information about the event visit: https://www.communicarehc.org/get-your-ticket-for-the-idig-communicare-fundraiser/.

ADJOURNMENT

13. Next Meeting - July 11, 2019

Proposed items for future meetings:

- o 2020 Census July
- o Oral Health July
- o Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities
- o Older Populations and STDs
- o Refugee Mental Health
- o Homeless Health
- o Whole Child Model
- o Workforce Group
- o Public restrooms
- o Yolo Food Bank Tour

The meeting was adjourned at 10:53 a.m.

Respectfully submitted by:

C. Sechler

Cyndi Sechler, Secretary Yolo County Health Council